UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE. . ..

L

BEFORE THE SECRETARY OF AGRICULTURE

T }
[ :

Inre: ) P.&S. Docket No. D-12- 0357
. ) - i
Ronald Ryan Shepard, Jr., a’k/a )
. Ronald Ryan Sheppard, Jr., a/k/a )
Ron Shephard, ' )
‘ )
Jeremy E Pierce, )
)
'Brookfield Cattle Company, LLC, )
)
)
)
Respondents ) Complaint

There is reason to believe that the respondents named herein ha;fe willfully
violated provisions of the Packers and Stockyards Act, 1921,‘ as amended and
supplemented (7 U.S.C. § 181 et seq.) and the regulations promulgated thereuﬁder
by the Secretary of Agriculture (9 C.F.R. § 201.1 et seq.), and, therefore, this
complaint is issued allgging the following: |

I
, (a) Respondent Ronald Ryan Shepard, Jr., also known as Ronald Ryan
Sheppérd, Jr., and also kno&n as Ron Shephard (Shepard) is an individual whose
home address is in ’Fhe State of ‘Illinois. In order to protect fhe personal privacy of
respondént Shepard, his home address is not inciuded in this Complaint but has
been provided to the Heér‘ing Clerk for the purpose of effectuating service of

process. Shepard at all times material herein was:



D) Engéged in the business of‘ a déaler buying and selling livestock in
commerce; |
(2) Not registered Witil the Secretary of Agriculture as a dealgr buying
4ar1d selling livestock in éommerg:e;
(3) Responsible for the direétion,’ management and control of bu;fing
activities for respondent Brookfield Cattle Company, LLC; and
(4) The alter ego of respondent Brookfield Cattle Company, LLC.
(b) Respondent Jeremy E. Pierce ‘(Pierce) is aﬁ individual whose home
-address is in the State of Illinois. In order to protect the personal privacy of.
réspondent Pierce, his home address is not included in this Complaint but has been
provided to the Hearing Clerk for the purpose of effectuating service of process.
Pierce at all times material herein was: | /
(1) Engagéd in the business of a deale; buying and selling livestock in
- commerce;
(2) Not registered with the Secretary of Agricultﬁre as a dealer buying
and selling livestock in commexrce;
(8) Responsible for the direction, management and confrol of
respondent Brookfield Cattle Company, LLC; and
(4) The alter eéo of respondeht Brookfield Cattle Cc;mpany? LLC.
(c) Respondent Brookfield Cattle Company, LLC, is a limited Habﬂity
company organized under the laws of Atue State of Florida, and has a mailing

address of PO Box 317, Goreville, IL, 62939, and its principal place of business at




5339 SE. 3rd Lane,. Trenton, FL,’ 32693. Brookfield Cattle Company, LLC, under the
directio.n, managéméﬁt, and control of respondents Shepard al’.ld’ Pierce; at all times A
material herein was:
(1) Engagedin the busingss ofa dealei‘ buying and selling livestock A
in commercei
' (2) Not registered with thé Secretary of Agriculture as a dealer

buying and seﬂiﬁg and selling livestock in commerce.

IT
A)  On or about April 11, 2011, the Midwestern Regional Office, Packers
and Stockyards Program, Grain Ihspection, Packers and Stockyards
* Administration (GIPSA) sent respondent Shepard a Notice of Default (NOD)
by certified mail, whic}'; Shepard received on or about April 13, 20.11. The
NOD stated that GIPSA had infor;riation indicating that Shepard was
engaged in the business of buying and selling livestock in commenrce. The
NOD ‘informed respondent that buying and selling livestock in commerce
without being properly-ljegistered with GIPSA and Withtsut filing a bond or
.bond equivalent are violations of the Act and regulétions issued thexfeunder.
The NOD warned respondent that failure to comply with.the registration aﬁd
bonding 1'eq1iireme11ts_wottld result in appropriate corréctive action. Relevant
provisions, forms and instructiéns for registration and bonding were enclosed

with the NOD.



B) On or about January 9, 20i2, the Midwestern Regional dﬂ’ice, Packers
and Stockyards Program, Grain Inspection, Packers and Stbckyaids.
Administration (GIPSA) ‘sent respondents Pierce and Brookfield Cattle |
Compaﬁy, LLC, a Notice of Defau_lt (NOD) by cerﬁﬁed mail, which the
respoindents received on or about Janualiy 11, 2012. The NOD stated that
GIPSA had information indicating that they were engaged in the business of
buying and selling livestock, in commerce. ~ The NOD informed these
respondents that buying and selling livestock in commerce without propexrly
being registered vﬁth GIPSA and withou’p filing é bond or bond equivalent are
violations of the Act and regulations issued ‘thereunder. .The NOD warned
these respondents that failure to comply with the registration and bonding
requirementé would result in appropriate corrective action. Relevant
provisions, formé and instru_ctioné for registration and bonding were enclosed

with the NOD.

K
(a) On or about the dates and in the transactions set forth in Appendix A, which |
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, respondents
Shepard, Pierce and Brookfield Cattle Company, LLC, issued checks in
payment for livestocl purchases which were returned unpaid by the bank

upon which they were drawn because respondents did not have and maintain

UJ

sufficient funds on deposit and available in the account upon which the



checks Weré drawn to pay them when presented.

(b) On or 'about the dates and in the transactions set .forth in Appendices A and
B, respondents Shepard, Pierce and Brookfield Catﬂe Company, LLC,
pu_rchased livestock and failed to pay, Qhen due, the full purchase price of
such h've~stock. | =

(::) On or about the dates and 'ir; the transactions set forth in Appendix C,

respondents Shepard, Pierce and Brookfield Cattle Company, LLC,

purchased livestock and failed to pay for such livestock.

v
Beginning in April 2011, and on the dates and in the transactions described
in Appendices A, B, and C, incorporated herein by reference, and in other
transactioﬁs a'nd on other dates, respondents Shepard, Pierce and Brookfield Cattle
Company, LLC, engaged in the businéss of a dealer buying and selling livestock in

commerce without maintaining a bond or bond equivalent.

A%

By reason of the facts alleged in paragraphs I, II and III above, respondents
willfully violated sections 312(a) (7 U.S.C. § 213(a)) and 409 (7 U.S.C. § 228b) of the
Act. | |

By reason of t.he facts alleged in paragraphs I and IV above, respondents

willfully violated section 312(a) of the Act (7 U.S.C. § 213(a)), 7 U.S.C. § 204, and

5




sections 201.29 and 201.30 of the regulations (9 C.F.R. §§ 201.29 and 201.30).

WHEREF'ORE; it 1s hereby ordered that this Complaint shall be served ﬁpon '
réspondents for the purpose of determining whether respondents have willfully
violated the Act and regulations. Respondents shall have twenty (20) days 'aftér .
receipt of this Complaint in which to file an answer with the Heéring Cief];, Room
1031-South Building, United States Department of Agric.ulture, 1400 Independence
Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9200, in accordance with’the Rules of
Practice governing proceedings under the Act (7 C.F.R. § 1.130 et seq.). Allegations
not answered shali be deemed admitted for the purpose of this proceeding. Failure
to file an anéwer will constitute an admission of all the material allegations of this
Complaint.

The Packers and Stockyards Program, Grain Inspection, Packers and
Stockyards Administration requests: |
1. That unless respondents fail to file an answer within the time allowed, or file

an answer admitting all the materi’agll allegations of this complaint, this

proceeding be set for oral hearing in accordance with the Rules of Practice;
and

2. That such order or or‘dérs be issued, including an order 'reQuiring respondents
to cease and desist frc;m the ﬁolations of the Act and the regulati;)ns found to
exist, prohibi‘ping respoﬁdents from being regisfered and engaging in .any

activities for which registration is required under the Act, and assessing such



civil penalties against respondents as are authorized by the Act and

warranted under the circumstances.

Done at Washington, D.C.

this /2 dayof_[Mpei] 2012

G0 -

Alan R. Christian
- Deputy Administrator
Packers and Stockyards Program

Krishna G. Ramaraju

Attorney for Complainant

United States Department of Agriculture
Office of the General Counsel
Marketing, Regulatory and Food Safety Programs Division
‘Room 2319, South Building

1400 Independence Avenue, S.W.
Washington, D.C. 20250-1400
Telephone: (202) 690-0672

Facsimile: (202) 690-4322
KRIS.RAMARAJU@OGC.USDA.GOV




Ap‘pendix A

Bc;g?#gaeny, LaLﬂ(l: ‘ 8/4/2011 Athens Commission Company, Inc. 80 - $59,951.80 8/5/201 . 812312011
U | 802011 | Mammoth Cave Dary Auction, Inc. | 34 $39,636.90 8102011 | gH9I201T:
Brogl;;;?;agstﬂe 8/9/20ﬁ Mammoth Cave Dairy Auction, Inc. 68 - $41,390.85 8/10/2011 8/19/2011"
Brog!é;;:;tagiltle 9/6/2011 - | Mammoth Cave Dairy Auction, Inc. 42 $31,142.42 S/7i2011 - 9120120117
Brogﬁf;’” Cattle | 962011 | Mammoth Cave Dairy Auction, Inc. 35 $41,341.23 9712011 912012017°
pany
Brogkport Cattle | 5582012 | Mammoth Cave Dairy Auction, Inc. | 57 $66,099.30 212912012 Unpaid®
pany ,
Brog‘;ﬁfgaﬁ;me 3/13/2012 | Mammoth Cave Dairy Auction, Inc. 23 $25,868.71 3/14/2012 Unpaid®
Ron Shepard 3/15/2012 Kentucky-&g?ﬁzﬁsgLivestock 26 $17,135.03 3/16/2012 ~ Unpaid’

1 Vlas View issued a check in the amount of $39,636.90 on or about 8/15/2011 in purported payment
for this livestock purchase. The check was returned as uncollectable on or about 8/18/2011.
Brookfield Cattle Company, LLC issued a replacement check in the amount of $44,969.60 on or
about 8/19/2011 to cover this livestock purchase as well as another one.

2 Vlas View issued a check in the amount of $41,390.85 on or about 8/16/2011 in purported payment
for this livestock purchase. The check was returned as uncollectable on or about 8/19/2011.
Brookfield Cattle Company, LI.C issued a check in the amount of $41,390.85 on or about 8/19/2011 to
cover this livestock purchase. ’ ‘ A
3 Brookfield Cattle Company, LLC issued a check in the amount of $31,142.42 on or about 9/13/2011
in purported payment for this livestock purchase. The check was returned as uncollectable on or
about 9/16/2011. Brookfield Cattle Company, LLC wired $72,483.65 on or about 9/20/2011 to cover
both of its purchases on 9/6/2011, i

4 Brookfield Cattle Company, LLC issued a check in the amount of $41,34.1.23 on or about 9/13/2011
in purported payment for this livestock purchase. The check was returned as uncollectable on or
about 9/16/2011. Brookfield Cattle Company, LLC wired $72,483.65 on or about 9/20/2011 to cover
both of its purchases on 9/6/2011. ' A

5 Brookfield Cattle Company, LLC issued a check in the amount of $66,099.20 on 3/2/2012 in
purported payment for this livestock purchase. The check was returned as uncollectable due to not
sufficient funds on 3/12/2012.

" 6 Brookfield Cattle Company, LLC issued a check in the amount of $25,868.71 on 8/19/2012 in

purported payment for this livestock purchase. The check wasreturned as uncollectable due to not
sufficient funds on 3/23/2012.

7 Brookport Cattle Company issued a check in the amount of $17,135.03 on 3/15/2012 in purported
payment for this livestock purchase. The check was returned as uncollectable due to the account

. being closed on 4/2/2012.




Appendix B

Purchased

Purchase | No. of Net Payment | Payment | Payment Days Late

From | Date Head of Invoice Due date Amount

Cattle Amount | Date per

Purchased §409
Henderson 8/8/2011 126 | $92,592.91 8/9/2011 2/6/2012 181
Livestock
Auction, Inc. : N
Henderson 8/15/2011 37 $31,450.96 8/16/2011 2/6/2012 $124,043.873 174"
Livestock ' :

Auction, Inc.

8 Respondents submitted seven wire payments of $20,000 each between 10/11/2011 and 1/9/2012 to
Emory Livestock Auction, Inc. in payment for amounts due to Athens Commission Company, Inc.,
Henderson Livestock Auction, Inc., and Emory Livestock Auction, Inc. The first payment on

- 10/11/2011 was applied to the remaining amount respondents owed Athens Commission Company,
Inc. The remainder of that payment, the next five payments, and part of the last payment on

1/9/2012, a sum of $124,043.87, w

Auction, Inc.

9

ere applied to the amounts respondents owed Henderson Livestock




Appendix C

Purchased From Purchase | No. of Head | Net Invoice | Payment
Date of Cattle Amount | Due Date |-
: Purchased .| per §409
Mammoth Cave Dairy Auction, Inc. | 2/28/2012 57 $66,099.30 | 2/29/2012
Mammoth Cave Dairy Auction, Inc: 3/18/2012 - 23 | $25,868.71 | 3/14/2012
Kentucky-Tennessee Livestock 3/15/2012 26 $17,285.03 | 3/16/2012 .
Market, Inc. o '
Kentucky-Tennessee Livestock 3/19/2012 78 $63,767.07 | 3/20/12012
Market, Inc.. ’ e
Kentucky-Tennessee Livestock 3/22/2012 55 $42,803.94 | 3/23/2012
Market, Inc.
Emory Livestock Auction, Inc. 8/6/2011 129 $97,710.02% | 8/9/2011
Emory Livestock Auction, Inc. 8/9/2011 86 $70,772.19 | 8/10/2011
Emory Livestock Auction, Inc. 8/16/2011 44 $41,247.67 | 8/17/2011

9 Respondents submitted five wire payments of $20,000 each between 1/9/2012 and 3/19/2012 to

" Emory Livestock Auction, Inc. in payment for amounts due to Henderson Livestock Auction, Inc. and
Emory Livestock Auction, Inc. The first payment on 1/9/2012 was applied to the remaining amount
respondents owed to Henderson Livestock Auction, Inc. The remainder of that payment plus the
other four payments, a sum of $83,897.82, were applied to the amount respondents owed Emory

- Livestock Auction, Inc. As of the date of the filing of this complaint, respondents still owe
$125,832.05 to the Emory Livestock Auction, Inc.

10




